
 

 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 8 October 2020 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 16 October 2020, 1.30 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) Councillor Michael Heaslip (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Joe Holliday 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Paul Scott 
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel.  

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 

or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 
 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 August 2020 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

  



4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Quarter 1 Performance Report 2020/21  (Pages 7 - 32) 
 

7. Developing a Resilient Communities strategy  (Pages 33 - 40) 
 

 To consider the approach being followed to develop this strategy 
  

8. Developing an Economic Growth strategy  (Pages 41 - 174) 
 

 To consider the recent progress in developing this strategy 
  

9. Task and Finish Group Updates  (Pages 175 - 178) 
 

 Updates on the Procurement Group, the Future Waste Group and the Pandemic 
Response Group. 

  

10. Forward Plan  (Pages 179 - 190) 
 

11. Work Programme 2020/21  (Pages 191 - 194) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 27 November 2020, 1.30 pm 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 
 



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on 
Friday 28 August 2020 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) Councillor Michael Heaslip (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Daniel Horsley 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Andrew Semple 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Tony Annison, Councillor Carmel 
Bell and Councillor John Crouch 
 
Staff Present 
 
H Brownlie, A FitzGerald, C Fleming, I Hinde, S Holland, J Irving, L Jardine and 
P Taylor 
 

 
56. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2020 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

57. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

58. Questions  
 
None received 
 

59. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

60. Maryport Programmes Update  
 
The Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) Officer began by advising members that the 
Heritage Action Zone had recently been announced, and that Maryport Heritage 
will be used as a basis for Regeneration.  
 
Members were shown the HAZ zone and the HAZ officer advised the 3 key 
strands of the Heritage Action Zone, Community Engagement, Capital 
Programme and Cultural Programme and provided an overview of the proposed 
activities and improvements which will be implemented using HAZ funding, the 
Cultural Programme will be led by the new ‘Creative Maryport’ group. 
 
The HAZ officer also delivered a presentation to members which included the 
‘vision of Maryport’ video which highlighted the capital project schemes planned 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



as part of the Maryport Regeneration if funding is granted from the Future High 
Street Fund. 
 
The Programme Manager for Maryport then delivered a presentation which 
detailed the strategic plan for Maryport and the Future High Street Fund. This 
presentation provided further detail, including the project overview images and 
design plans in relation to the six capital projects, 
 

 The Wave 

 The Carlton 

 Empire Yard 

 Christ Church 

 Public Realm Improvements 

 Vacant Units 
 
In addition, members were shown images and plans of new proposed 
cycleways and boardwalk improvements.  
 
The application for the fund was made in June 2020 and the outcome will be 
known in November 2020. Work has also begun on developing appropriate 
governance arrangements. 
 
Members then asked questions of the officers in relation to business incentives, 
accommodation, residential units, covered markets, consultations, e-bikes, 
covid-19 and marketing/communication. 
 
In relation to finances, members were concerned that the Council may have to 
subsidise some projects. Officers confirmed that the business case for the 
project can be shared to members which will provide further detail over financial 
sustainability. 
 
Some members also expressed concerns over the potential use of the Wave 
and the Carlton and its future financial viability. In response the officers clarified 
that robust consultation has taken place with residents, community groups and 
the Town Council. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

61. Satisfying the Legal Test for a Public Spaces Protection Order relating to 
Dog Fouling  
 
Following the approval from the Co-Chairs, this item was added to the agenda. 
 
The Legal Officer presented the item and report, providing members with an 
overview of the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) explaining that they 
cover anti-social behaviour that does not constitute a criminal offence, such as 
dog control and alcohol in public spaces. 
 
As such a PSPO is required for dog fouling as it is not governed by any other 
legislation, they are renewed every 3 years and the current order is due to 
expire 20 October. The legal officer explained that this item was a late item as 
the officers involved with the renewal have been involved in Covid-19 recovery. 

Page 4



 
Members were advised that to satisfy the legal test for the order the Council had 
undertaken a public consultation exercise which was included with the existing 
reports of dog fouling as an evidence base. From August 2016 to June 2020 
there were 3450+ reports of dog fouling, however this figure does not consider 
unreported and anecdotal incidents. The consultation included 4 questions and 
90% felt that dog fouling had a detrimental effect to their community from 429 
consultation responses.  
 
The Legal Officer went on to advise that under legislation the maximum fine for 
dog fouling is at £100 and this report will recommend that the Executive 
Committee use this maximum fine available.  
 
Members were then informed of the conditions that had to be met to make the 
PSPO, the Councils Legal Officer was satisfied all the conditions had been met. 
 
Debate ensued in relation to the duration of the order and the fine, as well as 
whether the legal test had been met and satisfied. 
 
Consensus of the members was that dog fouling was a very problematic area 
and that the duration of the order and fine to be imposed should be the 
maximum available as to deter dog fouling, acknowledging also that exceptions 
need to be considered. 
 
Councillor Heaslip moved to motion to approve the officer’s recommendations 
and that the executive consider a maximum fine of £100 and a three-year order, 
with the inclusion of the outlined exceptions. 
 
The motion to approve was seconded by Councillor Scott. 
 
A vote was taken on the motion, 10 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 
abstentions. 
 
Resolved 
 
The legal test for satisfying a PSPO relating to Dog Fouling has been met 
based on the reasons outlined in the report.  
 

62. Appointment of Task and Finish Group  
 
At the previous meeting members resolved to delegate the implementation of a 
strategy to consider the response and recovery to the Covid-19 pandemic to 
officers in consultation with the Chair. 
 
The Chair confirmed that a request was made for members to participate in the 
Task and Finish Group, a request was made to add the Council Workforce Plan 
to the terms of reference, which was agreed by members.  
 
Members noted the contents of the report and approved the implementation of a 
Pandemic Task and Finish Group, the group will consist of Councillors Scott, 
Heaslip, McCarron-Holmes and Lynch. 
 

Page 5



63. Consideration of Overview and Scrutiny Committee section of the 
Constitution  
 
The Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) provided an overview to the item 
and asked members to review the section six of the Allerdale Constitution, 
especially in relation to the ‘Call In’ section.  
 
Members agreed to review and provide feedback via email, comments will then 
be forwarded to the Constitution Working Group for consideration. 
 

64. Forward Plan  
 
Members noted the contents of the Forward Plan 
 

65. Work Programme 2020/21  
 
The Policy Officer (Scrutiny and Partnerships) explained to members that 
following the addition of new items, some of the work programme for 2020/21 
has been rescheduled. 
 
Members were advised that they will soon be invited to briefings in relation to 
the Community Stadium and the Allerdale Investment Partnership. 
 
Clarity was also provided to members in relation to the timing of Quarterly 
Performance Reports but acknowledged that this needed to be reviewed going 
forward. 
 
Debate also ensued in relation to implementation of the Climate Change Group, 
the Deputy Monitoring Officer clarified that this will be discussed at the next 
meeting of the Constitution Working Group. 
 
Members noted the contents of the Work Programme for 2020/21 
 

66. Task and Finish Group/Working Group Updates  
 
The Chair explained that the Procurement Task and Finish Group is still 
ongoing, and that Councillor Grainger has taken the Chair in Councillor Bell 
absence, members agreed to this change. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.50 pm 
 

Page 6



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 16 October 2020 

 

Quarter 1 Performance Report 2020/21
 

Portfolio holder Councillor Mike Johnson – Deputy Leader 

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald - Policy, 

Governance and People Resources Portfolio 

Report from Alex FitzGerald, Policy Manager (Corporate, 
Performance and Information) 

Wards affected   All 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 Sets out the Council’s performance at the end of Quarter 1 2020/21 as measured 
by key projects/activities and KPIs set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That Members note the information contained within the report with a view to 
seeking continuous improvement in performance. 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Council’s Corporate Performance Management Framework has been aligned 

with the Council Strategy 2020-2030 through the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 
(agreed by Executive in June 2020).  The Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 sets out a 
series of actions and indicators relating to how the Council will deliver against the 
six priority themes in the Council Strategy 2020-2030 over the coming year. 

3.2 The Quarter 1 Corporate Performance Report for 2020/21 covers the period from 1 
April to 30 June 2020 and focuses on the key actions and performance indicators 
set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21.   

3.3 In line with the Council’s Performance Management Framework the Executive and 
Overview and Scrutiny receive quarterly performance reports based on the Council 
Strategy. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



4.0  Corporate Performance  

 
4.1 The Corporate Performance Report is attached as Appendix A and contains: 

 Detail of progress on key actions  

 Detail of performance on key performance indicators  

4.2 The Corporate Performance Report is set out following the six priority themes in the 
Council Strategy 2020-2030: 

 A financially secure council 

 A cleaner, greener Allerdale 

 Invest to grow 

 Outstanding local services 

 Thriving towns and villages 

 Resilient communities 

4.3 The report at Appendix A shows that despite the current challenging times progress 
on activities is good overall, with 33 of the 39 key actions being green, 5 amber and 
1 red.  17 of the 27 indicators attributed a RAG rating were green (on target), 5 
amber (close to target) and 2 red (off target).    Full details are given in the report at 
Appendix A.  

 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Not applicable to this report. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

This is a performance report on delivery against the Council’s priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy 2020-2030. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 There are no financial implications directly associated with this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 There are no legal or governance implications directly associated with this report. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

  

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Indicators and 
performance 
measures are not 
monitored 
effectively 

Loss of focus on 
priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy so 
ambitions not 
achieved. 

Regular performance 
monitoring. 
Any 
recommendations for 
corrective action are 
followed up. 

Low 

Page 8



Corrective action is not 
identified early. 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

Projects within the priority area of ‘Outstanding local services’ in the Council 
Strategy relate specifically to customer satisfaction and service.   

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Equality impacts are considered in the development of individual projects and 
programmes.  There are no negative equality impacts from reporting performance. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

There are no health and safety implications directly associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
health, wellbeing and community safety outcomes. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

The performance report shows progress against activities intended to improve 
environmental and sustainability outcomes. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

None. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

Appendix A Q1 Performance Report 2020-21 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Council Strategy 2020-2030 https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-
council/council-strategy-2020-2030/ 
 

Council Strategy Interim Delivery 
Plan 2020/21 

https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.
aspx?CId=11&MId=4767 
 

 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 9

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767
https://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=11&MId=4767


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

1 

 

Corporate performance report 
 

Quarter 1 2020/21  
 
This performance report summarises our performance during the first quarter of 2020/21 
covering the period from 1 April to 30 June 2020.  
 
 

Performance overview 
 
The table below summarises the Quarter 1 position on the projects/activities and performance 
indicators set out in our Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21. 
 
Summary of Quarter 1 position Total Green 

 
 

Amber Red No fixed 
target 
figure1 

No new 
data 

available2 

Projects/activities 39 33 5 1 n/a n/a 

KPIs  39 17 5 2 12 7 

 

Projects/activities:  

There are 39 projects/activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 of which for Q1: 

 82% are green (on track) 

 15% are amber 

 3% are red 
 
The majority of projects and activities set out in the Interim Delivery Plan are on track, with 
notable achievements including the significant work of teams across the organisation to keep 
day to day services running as well as undertaking considerable additional work relating the 
pandemic situation such as paying out over 3000 grants to businesses; undertaking advisory 
and enforcement work around business closures; advising and supporting businesses in our 
town centres to reopen; working with the county council to support community groups, develop 
the local test and trace system and temporarily redesign our town centres for safety.  Alongside 
this, key projects such as the major regeneration schemes in Workington and Maryport have 
moved forward. 

 
Six projects/activities have seen some delays or issues with details given in the report, including 
the delivery of the Hardship Fund as there have been delays and issues with the necessary 
upgrade to our revenues and benefits system, which is now being tested before awards can be 
made. Delivery of the Arcus project is flagged as red after suffering delays over recent months 
as a consequence of technical and resource issues.  Discussions are ongoing to agree realistic 

                                                           
1 No fixed target figure. The pandemic situation has had a significant impact on a number of council 

services making target setting in some cases very difficult. In these cases we are not attributing a red, 
amber or green performance rating but will be tracking trends in performance and comparing to previous 
years where appropriate rather than measuring against a fixed target figure. 
2 No new data available at the time of reporting.  Some of these measures are only reported once a 
year, two have a time lag on the data. The ongoing pandemic situation has also meant that there is no data 
available for certain indicators for Q1 – in particular for leisure centre usage as centres remained closed 
until the end of July 2020. 

Page 11



 

2 

 

timescales for delivery of the final phases, Environmental Protection and Food, Licensing and 
Housing Enforcement.   
 

Key performance indicators: 

There are 27 performance indicators attributed a RAG rating of which: 

 63% were green (on or better than target) 

 19% were amber (close to target) 

 7% were red (off target) 
 
At 103 valid missed bins per 100,000 this indicator is rated as red.  This does however, 
represent a 99.90% success rate over Q1 for bin collection.  This was despite the start-up of a 
new service and the pandemic situation which presented some challenges to collection rounds.  
The figure for June was an improvement on May and the team are working closely with AWS to 
get this down lower over the coming months, recognising that improvement is needed.   
 
The figure for Q1 for the percentage of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods and services 
with local (Cumbrian) suppliers at 43.96% is 6% short of the new target and 2% down on Q1 
2019.   Lower value spend (under £50k) has been influenced by goods for Covid-19 response 
such as PPE which has had to be sourced from a wide area due to issues of high demand.  
Looking at total spend of all values 62.33% was to local suppliers during Q1 2020.  The 
procurement team continue to work with teams and suppliers to encourage local spend. 
 
Of the seven indicators with no fixed target figures that reported in Q1, 3 showed a static or 
improving trend including numbers of complaints.  Those with a worsening trend included 
incidents of fly tipping where we have seen a significant increase in incidents.  Details of action 
being taken to address this issue are given on p5 of this report. 
 
 
 

Definitions 

Projects/activities: 

G Everything is on target / satisfactory progress is being made / no action required 

A 
There are some concerns over achieving deadlines or outputs  / there are issues to rectify, but 
plans are in place to get the project back on track 

R 
There are significant concerns over achieving outputs / there is serious slippage in the timetable / 
there are major issues to rectify 

 

Key performance indicators: 

G On, or better than, target 


 Improving trend 

A 
Close to target (up to 10% variance) - some action may 
be required to improve performance 



 No change  

R 
Off target (>10% variance) – action required to improve 
performance 



 Getting worse 

Note: Trend is compared to previous quarter or in a few cases same quarter in the previous year. 

Page 12



 

3 

 

A financially secure council 
Our objectives: Address the projected budget gap    Become self-sufficient by 2030    Become more commercial    Become more 

efficient and productive 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Analyse actual and projected financial 
impacts of Covid-19 crisis and recovery 
phase and build into revised budget decisions 
for 2020/21 and medium term financial plan 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G 

The estimated financial impact that Covid19 is having on this 
authority is being monitored on a monthly basis and a return 
submitted to MHCLG.  The fourth return has just been 
submitted on 31 July 2020.  The areas of additional spend 
and income pressure have been identified.  Additional support 
from Government is also being monitored. 

Develop and deliver service specific 
recovery plans for our income generating 
services (in particular trade waste, estates, and 
car parking) 

from May 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G 

Income losses are being monitored and recovery plans are 
being developed to bring income streams back on line. 
Following government announcements easing the lockdown 
measures the previous suspension of Trade Waste services 
and the closure of car parks has been lifted and recovery 
plans are in progress. 

Review the Council’s Target Operating Model 
and working practices as part of our Recovery 
Strategy  

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G 

Each service area has developed individual Service Plans 
setting out changes to the ways we work to protect the safety 
of officers, elected members and our customers. The 
Transformation Programme has been re-shaped to focus on 
continued modernisation of working practices post-Covid to 
include remote working for the majority of our staff in the long 
term, increased use of cloud-based technology, video 
conferencing facilities to enable virtual and hybrid meetings 
and developing a plan for our offices and other properties. 

Continue a programme of service reviews 
across the council looking at cost, quality and 
delivery mechanisms (building in learning from 
operating during the pandemic)  

from June 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G 

Service reviews continued in Q1 despite issues with Covid-
19. Interviews were carried out with Officers using Teams. 
These findings were presented in reports to all Heads of 
Service.  This was phase 1 of Service Reviews, which is 
gathering baseline data and starting to engage with 

P
age 13



 

4 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

stakeholders.  We are moving to phase 3 in setting out the 
roadmap to get to the new ways of working set out in the 
TOM.  

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

% of council income that is from grants, CTax, 
NNDR, fees and charges (including commercial 
income streams)  

Final 
figures 

tbc 

Reported 
annually  

Reduce 
reliance on 
grants over 
longer term 

We are likely to see the effect of the pandemic in these 
figures at the end of the year, as fees, charges and 
commercial income streams have all been hit hard by the 
pandemic.  

Overall % of budget coming from balances 
Final 

figure tbc 
Reported 
annually 

Reduce over 
longer term 

The 2020/21 budget as agreed in March 2020 did not 
identify any revenue budget to come from balances.  
However, the pandemic situation has had budgetary 
impacts.   A further report on the budgetary impacts of the 
pandemic is due to be considered by Executive in 
September. 

Level of forecast budget gap 

£2.2m 
2021/22 
£2.1m 

2022/23 

Reported 
annually 

Reduce over 
longer term 

A further report on the budgetary impacts of the pandemic 
is due to be considered by Executive in September. 

% of invoiced debt collected within 30 days of 
invoicing 

58% 55%  Increase   

% of debt outstanding for over 90 days 29% 28%  Reduce   

NNDR collection rate 98.48% 29.47%  97.70% 
The collection rate has been affected by the pandemic 
situation and recovery action being suspended for the first 
quarter of the financial year.  

Council Tax collection rate 97.38% 28.85%  97.20% 
The collection rate has been affected by the pandemic 
situation and recovery action being suspended for the first 
quarter of the financial year. 

Occupancy rates of Council’s property portfolio 91% 91%  90%  

P
age 14



 

5 

 

A cleaner, greener Allerdale  
Our objectives: Make sure our neighbourhoods are clean and tidy    Reduce waste and increase recycling    Improve and protect our 

open spaces and green infrastructure    Ensure environmental sustainability is at the heart of our policies    Use our assets to encourage 

green technology 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Tackle and reduce fly tipping through 
enforcement action and educational activity 
focusing resources on known hotspots. 

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

The Enforcement Team have been carrying out high profile 
patrolling to educate and engage. The team have provided a 
visible deterrent and high profile preference in problem areas 
in Workington and Maryport as well as rural hotspots. 
Leaflets advising of the penalties and how to dispose of 
waste correctly have been delivered and residents advised. 
A project has been set up to identify novel and more effective 
methods of working that will reduce instances of 
environmental offences including fly tipping. 

Carry out recycling initiatives and educational 
campaigns to reduce waste  

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property  

G 

As expected there has been very limited opportunity to carry 
out any campaign work beyond regular social media 
reminders and information during Q1.  The focus for the 
team during this quarter has been on ensuring waste 
collection services were operating as well as possible during 
the lock down period and the initial closure of household 
recycling centres and suspension of garden waste 
collections has proved challenging in terms of the recycling 
message.    

Progress strategic green infrastructure and 
biodiversity projects and encourage 
environmental volunteering: Water 
Environment Grant projects at Siddick Pond; 
improvements to land at Northside near Siddick 
Pond; Workington Nature Partnership projects; 

Northside 
by 2021 
Other 
projects by 
2022 

Finance and 
Property 

G 

Good progress is being made on all fronts. 1. Siddick Pond 
Water Environment Grant: Several individual projects that 
are being funded through this programme have already been 
procured including reedbed management, control of invasive 
species, water quality and biodiversity survey, and the 
design of a new wetland area. 2. Northside: Liaison with 
tenants has resulted in a way forward which will enable the 

P
age 15



 

6 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

development of 'Get Cumbria Buzzing' sites (12 
sites) 

northern section to be cleared and returned to open space 
while retaining and enhancing the southern section as 
allotment. Tenants are looking to establish a "Community 
and Recreational Garden Society" which would create the 
opportunity for an asset transfer of the southern section and 
a self-management model. 3. "Get Cumbria Buzzing": 
Excellent progress has been made on 6 of our "Get Cumbria 
Buzzing" sites, including the creation of extensive new 
pollinator-friendly habitat at Shore Road, Derwent Howe, 
Oldside (all Workington) and Maryport Coastal Park. This 
activity has created opportunities for volunteers and schools 
to participate. 

Develop and start delivery of a Climate 
Change Action Plan 

Developed 
by Sept 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G 

Following approval at full Council, the 18 recommendations 
from the Climate Change Task and Finish Group are now 
being taken forward and fed into the development of a 
Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan.  A member of the 
Executive has now formally taken on responsibility for 
Climate Change and a Climate Change Group is being 
established to take this work forward. 

  

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

Number of fly tipping incidents  689 328  Reduce  
An increase since the last quarter (Q4 2019/20 - 248) and a 
significant increase on same Q last year (Q1 2019/20 - 135). 

Number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued (fly 
tipping) 

9 0  Increase 
Challenges posed by the pandemic have led to detailed risk 
assessments having to be carried out to ensure safety of 
enforcement officers, still under review. 

P
age 16



 

7 

 

Street cleanliness measure New 
Data not yet 

available 

All sites 
Grade B 
or above 

This measure will report in Q2. 

% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling 
and composting 

33.7% 
Data not yet 

available 
36% 

There is a time lag in producing this figures as data needs to 
be validated via the county council.  Q1 figure will be 
reported in the Q2 report. 

Residual waste per household (kgs) 522.09 
Data not yet 

available 
479kg 

There is a time lag in producing this figures as data needs to 
be validated via the county council.  Q1 figure will be 
reported in the Q2 report. 

Number of valid missed waste and recycling 
collections  

New 103 New 
80 per 

100,000  

This represents a 99.90% success rate over Q1.  This was 
despite the start-up of a new service and the pandemic 
which presented some challenges to collection rounds.  The 
figure for June was an improvement on May and we are 
working closely with AWS to get this down lower over the 
coming months, recognising that improvement is needed.   

 

 

 

P
age 17



 

8 

 

Invest to grow  
Our objectives:  Use our asset portfolio to create new or different opportunities    Work with partners on key economic sites and 

opportunities    Utilise the Allerdale Investment Partnership, the Local Enterprise Partnership and Britain’s Energy Coast to stimulate 

growth     Develop a housing company to provide the right homes in the right places at the right price   

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status  

Q1 commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Develop plans for economic recovery 
including a new Economic Growth 
Strategy for Allerdale to guide economic 
development activity to ambitiously rethink 
and rebuild the local economy over the 
longer term 

 
by Oct 2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G 

Mott McDonald are leading a consortium of companies to develop 
a new strategy for the Borough. The baseline assessment has 
been issued to the council for comment and work has now started 
on the development of the new strategy. 

Deliver the national programmes of 
support grants to small businesses, 
including developing and delivering any 
discretionary schemes to support local 
businesses  

from April 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G 

At 28 July 2020 the Council had paid out just over £36m to 3,110 
businesses under the Small Business and Retail, Hospitality and 
Leisure Grant Funds, representing 91% of the allocation from 
Government.  In addition, the Council had helped 169 businesses 
through the smaller Discretionary Business Grants Scheme with 
grants totalling £1.19m. Government has announced that the 
grants schemes will need to close on 28 Aug 2020. 

Develop the Housing Company: existing 
properties let and converted (7 properties); 
develop Phase 2 Programme for future 
years 

 
by 2021  
 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G 

Since the commencement of the Covid-19 pandemic the Maryport 
properties have been utilised by the Council’s Housing Options 
team to support the homeless. The other phase one properties are 
on track for conversion.  

Progress investment and regeneration 
schemes including: 

Review viability options for delivery of new 
business units at Reedlands Road 

by Sept 
2020 

 

 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

A 

Following ground investigation works underlying mine-workings, 
buried obstructions and extremely poor ground conditions have 
been identified on site, and as such forecast project costs have 
increased significantly. The Programmes and Project Team have 
undertaken a full options analysis and considered rental income 
projections against the increase in capital costs. The options 
analysis was considered at the Regeneration, Asset Management 
and Strategic Growth Board on 2 July 2020 and the decision taken 

P
age 18



 

9 

 

 Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status  

Q1 commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

to continue with the project, subject to budget approval by 
Executive and Full Council in September 2020. 

Development of Lillyhall North to provide 
business accommodation (also a 
commercial opportunity for the Council)  

by March 
2021 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G 

Cumbria LEP has confirmed a funding award of £1,789,961 Local 
Growth Fund support to progress the development of enabling 
infrastructure by March 2021. CLEP has also confirmed an 
allocation of £5.5m, subject to approval of a Full Business Case, for 
the development of a vertical farming facility at Lillyhall North. A 
dedicated project team has been established to co-ordinate the 
delivery of these projects 

Progress discussions around Lower 
Derwent Valley Regeneration Scheme 
(including a community sports village) 

from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G 

Positive discussions have taken place with both Workington Reds 
and Workington Town with a view to establishing a new project 
board, led by the sporting clubs, but supported by the Council to 
lead on the development of a revised proposition for the 
development of a new shared stadium.  Discussions are ongoing in 
relation to the potential for the development of other uses within the 
Lower Derwent Valley. 

Development of other investment and 
regeneration opportunities with 
development partners and the Allerdale 
Investment Partnership as a priority. 

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G 

Work is ongoing to finalise the amendments to the members’ 
agreement for the Allerdale Investment Partnership agreed in 
principle by Executive earlier this year. Discussions are also 
ongoing with AIP in relation to their role in the development of 
additional sites.  

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of major planning applications determined 
within statutory period 

89% 100%  90% Improvement on 2019/20. 

% of grant monies paid out in grants to small 
businesses 

n/a 90%  

100% by 
Oct 

2020 

At 28 July 2020 the Council had paid out 91% of the 
allocation from Government for the Small Business and 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grant Funds and 60% of the 
allocation for the smaller Discretionary Business Grants 
Scheme. Government has announced that the grants 
schemes will need to close on 28 Aug 2020. 

P
age 19



 

10 

 

Outstanding local services 
Our objectives:  Make it easy for customers to contact us    Ensure we get it right first time    Be bold in our use of technology    Look 

at different and better ways to deliver services 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Deliver technology projects to provide 
improved digital platforms and self-
service options including: 
 

 continued implementation of the Arcus 
land and property system 

 

 
 
 
by March 
2021 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services  

R 

The Arcus project will transform the way Allerdale Regulatory 
Services deliver their service for the future.   It is one of the 
largest projects in the business transformation programme and it 
involves replacing several ageing IT systems requiring complex 
data migrations as well as a significant resource need from the 
ICT, Arcus Global and Regulatory Services teams. 
The complexity of this project has led to the need to revise 
timescales and resource requirements, an additional specialist 
from Arcus Global has joined the Allerdale delivery team and a 
new project plan and timescales agreed between Allerdale and 
Arcus.  Land charges and Planning are the next areas to go live 
in Q3 followed by Environmental protection, Food and OH in Q4.  

 purchase and implementation of a new 
finance, payroll and HR system 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

A 

Procurement has taken place for an ERP system.  The project 
team are meeting weekly to ensure a decision on winning bidder 
can go to the Sept Executive.  Timescales had slipped but are 
now being addressed by weekly meetings to ensure the award of 
contract can go ahead and implementation can begin.   

Review the Council’s Target Operating 
Model and working practices as part of 
our Recovery Strategy  

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G 

Each service area has developed individual Service Plans 
setting out changes to the ways we work to protect the safety of 
officers, elected members and our customers. The 
Transformation Programme has been re-shaped to focus on 
continued modernisation of working practices post-Covid to 
include remote working for the majority of our staff in the long 
term, increased use of cloud-based technology, video 
conferencing facilities to enable virtual and hybrid meetings and 
developing a plan for our offices and other properties. 

P
age 20



 

11 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where red/amber) 

Continue a programme of service 
reviews across the council looking at 
cost, quality and delivery mechanisms 
(building in learning from operating during 
the pandemic) 

from May 
2020 

Programmes 
and Projects 

G 

Service reviews continued in Q1 despite issues with Covid-19. 
Interviews were carried out with Officers using Teams. These 
findings were presented in reports to all Heads of Service.  This 
was phase 1 of Service Reviews, which is gathering baseline 
data and starting to engage with stakeholders.  We are moving 
to phase 3 in setting out the roadmap to get to the new ways of 
working set out in the TOM.  

Ensure Allerdale Waste Services is 
delivering against performance targets 

from April 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G 

A Partnering Board has been established and meets on a 
monthly basis to review updates on the progress and 
performance of AWS.  The review covers operational issues, 
health and safety, financial performance and the performance 
framework. 

  

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend   Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where 
red/amber) 

% of abandoned calls 12% 4%  7% 
Significant improvement on the previous year’s 
performance with the reallocation of resources to 
ensure service delivery. 

Customer satisfaction (ring back) 96% 90%  90% 

Performance in Q1 demonstrates that public 
confidence in customer services remained high and 
was not adversely affected by changes in the way the 
public now contact us. 

Number of complaints 1280 158  Reduce  
This measure is showing an improvement the 
previous quarter. 

% change in website unique page views  New 29.7%  

5% 
increase (6 

month 
rolling 

average) 

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in 
unique page views over the past year.  Percentages 
have increased considerably over Q1 as more people 
have been looking for information via our website 
during the pandemic. 

% change in new website users New 237.1%  

30% 
increase (6 

month 

This is a rolling measure looking at the change in new 
website users over the past year.  Percentages have 

P
age 21



 

12 

 

rolling 
average)  

increased considerably over Q1 as more people have 
been looking for information via our website during 
the pandemic. 

Facebook reach rate  New 22.52%  

10% rise (6 
month 
rolling 
period)  

This is a rolling measure looking at change in the 
reach of our Facebook posts.   

Facebook engagement rate New 10.71%  

10% 
increase (6 

month 
rolling 

average) 

This is a rolling measure looking at how far people 
have engaged with our Facebook posts (for example 
by sharing a post).   

Digital transactions as a % of total transactions New 
Data not yet 

available 
Baseline 

year 
This indicator is still being developed and will report in 
Q2. 

Overall time ICT systems available for use  100% 100%  99.9% 

The work that the IT team have done to introduce 
resilience into the council’s systems has ensured that 
ICT systems were up and running effectively to 
support the organisation through the lock down period 
including enabling almost all staff to work from home 
seamlessly.  

 

  

P
age 22



 

13 

 

Thriving towns and villages 
Our objectives:  Support businesses    Create deliverable town plans that enable our towns to adapt to the changing nature of the high 

street   Ensure there are suitable, affordable, decent homes for all   Give people a reason to visit our towns (festivals, events, cultural and 

sporting activities, markets)    Increase the number of people living in our town centres    Build communities, not just homes 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Maryport Regeneration Programme: 
work to access funding from the Future 
High Street Fund and Heritage Action 
Zone and development of the town 
centre and waterfront plans, building in 
new intelligence about the impacts of the 
pandemic.   

Submit FHS 
business 
case by end 
July 2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Maryport) 

G 

Future High Street Bid submitted 30 July, includes a 
supplementary report on impact of Covid-19. Waterfront project to 
be restarted on 1 Aug. HAZ Programme now initiated and Cultural 
Consortium 'Creative Maryport' set up and meeting regularly. 

Workington Town Deal:  
- Develop investment plan building in 
intelligence about the impacts of the 
pandemic 
- Develop Delivery Plan once funding 
secured for 2021 onwards 

 
by August 
2020 
from 2021 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G 

Following the publication of further guidance for the Towns Fund 
by MHCLG in June the Workington Town Deal Board has agreed 
that Workington Town Investment Plan (TIP) should be submitted 
as part of 'cohort 2' i.e. by 31 October 2020. Work in ongoing to 
develop the TIP and undertake community consultation prior to 
submission. Subject to assessment of the TIP by MHCLG Head of 
Terms will be agreed and there will then be a period of up to 12 
months to develop detailed business cases for the selected 
projects. 

Undertake business engagement and 
support activity to enable the Council to 
better understand businesses issues, 
challenges and ideas and feed those 
through to local, regional and national 
forums. 

from April 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance   

G 

Restaurants, cafes and pubs have been supported in reopening 
post 4 July 2020 with the work across Council coordinated to 
ensure business received accurate, timely advice. Excellent cross 
team working delivered the support. An online Tourism Breakfast 
Briefing was held for the visitor economy sector to provide help 
and advice during the pandemic. 

P
age 23



 

14 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Undertake work with partners to 
support the recovery of the visitor 
economy including assessing the 
impact, considering appropriate 
interventions and delivering actions as 
part of a recovery plan for the visitor 
sector, markets and events.  

from June 
2020 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) &  
Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance   

G 

Keswick and Workington markets reopened with social distancing 
measures in place. Planning for Taste Cumbria Cockermouth in 
September and December took place with a range of options 
identified in line with Covid-19 restrictions. Working with partners, 
we asked visitors to follow social distancing rules when visiting 
Allerdale whilst preparing "safe" itineraries in anticipation of the 
post 4 July easing of restrictions. Detailed planning also 
commenced on new projects to boost the visitor economy this year 
and next e.g. a cycling Sportive event for Silloth in 2021/22 and a 
Resident's Week in 2020/21. 

Complete the Allonby to Silloth 
coastal cycle path extension to support 
the visitor economy and health and 
wellbeing agenda 

Open by 
2021 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington) 

G 

Executive approved the appointment of a main contractor at their 
July meeting. Works expected to start on site September 2020 and 
the project is expected to be completed within the current financial 
year. 

Deliver targeted public realm schemes 
in our towns including: 

 Work with the county council to 
consider temporary physical changes 
to road and pavement layouts to 
support our town centre businesses 
with ongoing social distancing 
measures 

 
from June 
2020 
 

Programme 
Director 
(Workington)  

G 

An advisory pedestrian one way system was introduced in Murray 
Road and Finkle Street, Workington and signage was installed on 
Station Street, Cockermouth to encourage social distancing that 
complimented the County Council scheme which widened one of 
the footpaths. 

 Progress the Central Way underpass 
improvement scheme 

Phase 1 by 
March 2021 

Finance and 
Property 

A 

Asbestos survey OK. Project QS/CDM consultant is back from 
furlough and is liaising with Landscape Architect to firm up 
specification for wall lining system which will need to be signed off 
by CCC, and other interested parties notified. This is the final 
element of the scheme requiring detailed design. Tender 
documents are already in prep and will be finalised once 
conclusions are reached and pending agreement with CCC 
regarding fixings details for lighting and artwork to Underpass 

P
age 24



 

15 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

walls. Budget review to be undertaken prior to submission of 
Better Towns application (accelerated fund). 

Ensure our regulatory services work 
to assist businesses as much as 
possible, such as efficient planning, 
building control, licensing and 
environmental health processes, 
implementing improvements to the 
provision of services to help businesses  

from March 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

A 

Building Control is now signed up to the Local Authority Building 
Control QMS (ISO 9001). This includes external and internal 
reviews of systems and procedures and implementation of LABC 
processes. Building Control also uses Arcus. However, planning, 
licensing and environmental health are yet to go live with Arcus 
and this prohibits full coordination of these services and 
efficiencies in processes such as data share, one-stop shops for 
customers' projects and efficient inter-team consultation. Also 
need to explore the structure within the planning DM team which 
currently lacks dedicated conservation, tree and enforcement roles 
and no geographical teams. The use of CIPFA benchmarking was 
going to inform a review of the efficiencies but this project has 
been shelved nationally due to lack of take up (Allerdale has 
signed up). Now looking for Cumbrian benchmarking.  

Undertake work to understand and 
address impacts of the pandemic on 
the housing market over short, medium 
and longer term  

from June 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G 

Meetings have commenced recently with Housing developers and 
RP and include a discussion about understanding of the current 
housing issues relating to developments.  Early indication that the 
housing market on new development is buoyant, but they are 
working on a back log of sales.  Some developers have reported 
that a number of sales have been lost during lockdown and it is 
suspect that this may be as a result of change in circumstances 
around uncertainty in the jobs market.  RPs are currently 
evaluating their position on rent arrears but the details are not yet 
fully understood, and the actions on how to manage these are 
being considered.  RPs are now allocating housing, however, it is 
an ongoing challenge seeking access to supported housing and to 
offer longer term solution for individuals presenting as homeless. 
Repairs and maintenance work during Covid-19 lockdown was 
limited to emergencies only, and RPs will also be working with a 
back log of repairs to deal with.   We have begun to see a number 

P
age 25



 

16 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

of requests on the discounted sales properties coming through for 
resale, and at the same time and increase in enquiries in 
purchasing low cost homes through the affordable homes 
programme. 

Deliver disabled facilities grants and 
review the Housing Grants and 
Assistance Policy in light of the 
pandemic. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

The number of Disabled Facilities Grant referrals and grant 
approvals/completions has significantly reduced due to the 
pandemic. All visits by Occupational Therapists (OTs), Grant 
Officers and contractors ceased and only urgent cases were dealt 
with. The grant team have changed working practices and have 
worked with Cumbria County Council OTs to agree safe ways of 
working to ensure adaptations can continue when lockdown 
measures are lifted.  

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

% of invoices from local Cumbrian businesses 
paid within 14 days 

93.3% 97.8%  98.0% 

Performance in Q1 2020/21 is very close to target and an 
improvement on the previous quarter and also compares 
favourably with the same quarter in 2019/20 when only 
92.7% was achieved.  

% of Council spend (less than £50k) on goods 
and services with local (Cumbrian) suppliers  

47.40% 43.96%  50.00% 

The result is 6% short of the new target and 2% down on 
Q1 2019.   Lower value spend (under £50k) has been 
influenced by the goods for Covid-19 such as PPE which 
has had to be sourced from a wide area due to issues of 
high demand.  62.33% of the total amount of spend (based 
on all values) was to local suppliers during Q1 2020. 

Numbers of affordable homes delivered 54 0  
Not 

targeted 

There has been a lack of completion data coming through 
as a result of the pandemic situation.  Building Control 
officers have begun site visits again so the figure is likely 
to see an adjustment over quarter 2.  

P
age 26



 

17 

 

Full Plans determined within 5 weeks (Building 
Control) 

84% 100%  85%  

% of Local Land Charges Searches carried out 
within 10 working days 

99.4% 100%  100%  

% of minor and other planning applications 
determined within statutory period 

90% 95.4%  90% An improvement on 2019/20 performance. 

No. of housing units granted planning permission 380 65  339 
This is lower than the previous quarter as might be 
expected given the pandemic situation, but higher than the 
same quarter in 2019/20.   

Number of DFGs approved 162 20  

Increase 
through 
the year 

Referrals for adaptations have been significantly down due 
to the pandemic affecting the ability of Occupational 
Therapists to undertake assessments.  The pandemic has 
also posed significant challenges in terms of carrying out 
adaptation work in people’s homes.  The budget for 
disabled facilities grants can be carried over into next 
financial year, but the aim is still to maximise adaptations 
carried out this year as far as is feasible. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 27



 

18 

 

Resilient communities  
Our objectives:  Promote healthy, active lifestyles    Address community safety issues    Engage with our communities, and our town 

and parish councils    Prevent and reduce homelessness    Address inequalities 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Work with GLL to plan for reopening and 
future operation of leisure centres 
including restarting the Healthwise Scheme 
to deliver exercise on referral 

from June 
2020 

Finance and 
Property 

G 

Phase 1 of opening complete. 2 sites open with pool, classes 
and fitness activities. Additional activities to be introduced as 
and when demand or social distances measures and guidance 
allow.   

Deliver a £140k grants pot to support 
sporting clubs and associations to improve 
accessibility, participation and to support 
recovery from impacts of the Coronavirus 
pandemic 

by March 
2021 

Finance and 
Property 

G 
Grant form online ready to launch from the beginning of 
August.  

Further develop the Allerdale Local Focus 
Hub to drive a thriving families approach with 
existing and new partners including 
responding to the ongoing impact of 
lockdown and continued social distancing 
measures.  

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

During most of quarter one all hub activity was 'on pause' due 
to the deployment of resources to the Covid-19 emergency. 
Referral activity has now restarted, Since Lockdown the 
Allerdale Local Focus Hub have received over 30 referrals for 
a multi-agency response. High risk referral work has now 
restarted following a temporary pause on activity due to the 
Covid-19 emergency. Multi agency meetings are now held 
virtually and key partners are attending and engaging in hub 
activity very well. 
Crime in the Allerdale area increased in June with 533 
offences recorded compared to 459 in May (+74 crimes / 
+14%) and the largest rises were in Violent Crime, Public 
Order & Sexual Offences.  Anti-social Behaviour decreased 
from 303 to 207 (-96 incidents / -32%) which was due to a 
decrease in Covid-19 incidents. There were no significant 
crime series to raise & drug related ASB continues to be the 
main problem issue affecting the community. In May an 
increase in Anti-social Behaviour has been seen for the second 

P
age 28



 

19 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

consecutive month with the number of incidents recorded rising 
from 211 in April to 303 in May (+92 incidents / +43%).  This 
was due to reports of persons breaching Covid-19 regulations.  
Crime increased slightly, rising from 432 in April to 460 in May 
(+32 crimes / +7%). Multi agency high visibility patrols have 
been in place throughout this period offering support and 
reassurance to our communities. The Allerdale Local Focus 
Hub Manager is a member of the Childrens Locality Board 
meetings. 

Provide advice and guidance, along with 
undertaking investigation and 
enforcement activity, to support Covid-19 
restrictions on businesses and help them 
provide safe environments. 

from April 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

The F&OH team have put a huge amount of time in supporting 
businesses during lockdown and during the phased opening 
introduced by government. This has been by street walks and 
talks, spot checks, telephone calls, letters, leaflet/guidance and 
Facebook. In addition, complaints have been investigated and 
most have been resolved through education and advice. In 
some cases, written advice with warnings have been 
necessary. However, to date no enforcement action has been 
necessary as businesses have worked with the team to put 
appropriate measures in place.   

Undertake test and trace activity in 
partnership with Cumbria County Council. 

from June 
2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

An Allerdale Track and Trace team has been formed to 
manage local outbreaks, provide Infection, Prevention and 
Control advice and arrange local testing. All positive cases 
linked to complex settings are discussed daily at an Incident 
Management Hub meeting chaired by Colin Cox, Director of 
Public Health. Thankfully Allerdale have seen a small number 
of cases to follow up on.   

Develop a Resilient Communities Strategy 
setting out how we can support communities 
across the district as we move out of the 
current restrictions and into recovery. 

by Aug 
2020 

Strategy, 
Policy and 
Performance 

G 
Work started in Q1 to develop the strategy.  Discussion 
sessions planned for Q2 with members and community groups. 

P
age 29



 

20 

 

Key projects/activities Timescales Responsible 
Head of 
Service 

Q1 
RAG 
status
  

Q1 commentary (and management action where 
red/amber) 

Deliver the Hardship Fund to support those 
on the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and 
others experiencing financial hardship as a 
result of the pandemic. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

A 

Details of the scheme provided by central government and new 
policy now approved.  There was a delay in IT software 
suppliers providing the necessary upgrade to our revenues and 
benefits systems.  This was not delivered until 14 July 2020, 
however, that required an immediate patch which was released 
w/c 27 July and is currently being tested before awards can be 
made.   

Implement the Homeless Strategy action 
plan including a focus on prevention activity 
and ongoing work to help the additional 
people housed during the pandemic crisis to 
remain in accommodation. 

from June 
2020 

Customer 
Operations 

G 

Although the new homeless strategy has yet to be agreed the 
Housing Options team were mandated by government to 
remove all rough sleepers from the streets during the 
pandemic which has been carried out. The numbers of rough 
sleepers has increased dramatically during the last three 
months, we have successfully moved numbers on into 
permanent accommodation and currently have an additional 20 
rough sleepers in B&Bs. The government has introduced the 
NSAP programme (Next Steps Accommodation Programme) 
which is a funding bid to apply for funding to maintain systems 
and provide short to long term accommodation for all clients, 
the application has to be finalised and submitted by 20 August 
2020. 

Progress and launch the Cold to Cosy 
Homes Scheme – working towards launch in 
autumn 2020. 

by Oct 2020 

Governance 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

G 

Several meetings have taken place with Cumbria Action for 
Sustainability around the Cold to Cosy Homes scheme. An 
initial planning meeting is due to take place in July and 
following this a project plan will be developed. 

  

 

 

 

P
age 30



 

21 

 

Key performance indicators 
2019/20 
actual 

Q1 
actual 

Trend Target 
2020/21 

Progress and management action (where red/amber) 

Leisure centre usage  

546,288 

(all 

centres) 

No data 

Increase 
gradually 

once 
centres 

can 
reopen 

Leisure centres remained closed throughout quarter 1 so there 
are no usage figures to report for this quarter.  Workington and 
Cockermouth leisure centres due to reopen on 25 July after 
significant work by GLL to reopen safely in line with 
government guidelines. 

% of homeless decisions made within 
guideline 56 days 

100% 100%  100%  

% of successful homeless preventions and 
relief outcomes 

54% 56%  50%  

Time taken to process Housing Benefit new 
claims (no. of days) 

7 13  15 days High volumes of claims due to Covid19 and requirement to wait 
for the outcome of universal credit assessments have affected 
performance in Q1. Time taken to process Council Tax new 

claims (no. of days) 
13 20  20 days 

Time taken to process Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax change of circumstances 
(no. of days) 

3 3  4 days  

 

 

 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 16 October 2020 

 

Developing a Resilient Communities Strategy 

 
 
Portfolio holder Councillor Marion Fitzgerald - Policy, Governance and People 

Resources Portfolio 
Councillor Alan Pitcher - Customer Experience and Innovation 
Portfolio 
Councillor Anthony Markley - Environmental Services Portfolio 
Councillor John Cook – Leisure and Tourism Portfolio 

Report from Alex FitzGerald – Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and 
Information) 

Wards affected All wards 

Is this a key decision No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 The Council has begun development of a Resilient Communities Strategy to sit 

under the Council Strategy.  This report updates members on progress and seeks 
views from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on strategy content.  

 

2.0  Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Overview and Scrutiny Committee members: 

 Note the report 

 Offer suggestions or recommendations on issues or opportunities they 
consider should be addressed in the Resilient Communities Strategy    

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Council agreed the Council Strategy 2020-2030 in December 2019.  One of the 

themes within that strategy is Resilient Communities. 

3.2 Under the Resilient Communities priority theme in the Council Strategy five 
strategic objectives are set out: 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 Promote healthy, active lifestyles 

 Engage with our communities and our town and parish councils 

 Address community safety issues 

 Address inequalities 

 Prevent and reduce homelessness 
 
3.3 In line with ongoing work to simplify and streamline the council’s policy and strategy 

framework, the intention set out in the Interim Delivery Plan 2020/21 is to create a 
Resilient Communities Strategy that will set out how we can support our 
communities across the district.  Given the ongoing pandemic situation this strategy 
must now consider shorter term approaches to supporting communities through the 
ongoing restrictions and into recovery as well as looking at longer term approaches 
that will help strengthen our communities. 

3.4 As part of its policy development role the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
identified tracking the development of this strategy in its work plan for 2020/21.  The 
Committee also agreed to form a small Policy Group to consider the development of 
this and other key strategies.  This group has met twice and discussed the 
development of the Resilient Communities Strategy. 

3.5 A small officer group has begun research and development activity considering a 
range of papers and research (national and local) relating to resilient communities, 
as well as existing data relating to Allerdale’s communities, and data available 
about the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our communities. The next stage 
of the process will be to test out some of the thinking outlined below further. 

 

4.0  Content  

 
What do we mean by resilient communities? 

4.1 There are many interpretations of resilience and the term is used in different ways, 
by different organisations, in different contexts.  Resilience can be used to refer to 
institutions, individuals and communities.  

 
4.2 In relation to communities, resilience is often used in terms of how a community 

comes together to react and provide support in an emergency situation such as a 
flood. Within Cumbria there is an established Local Resilience Forum framework for 
example, that comes together precisely for that purpose.  

 
4.3 The term resilience is also used more broadly in terms of communities and their 

ability to respond and adapt to change. That change might be dramatic and 
immediate (such as with natural disasters) or more gradual such as the changing 
nature of society (e.g. ageing population) or work (e.g. new technologies leading to 
changed job opportunities).  

 
4.4 Some research has made a distinction between ‘recovery’, which could be seen as 

getting things back to how they were, and ‘adaptation’ or ‘transformation’, which is 
about being able to adapt or change to meet the new circumstances.  Researchers 

Page 34



 

 

at Northumbria University described these two different elements as “bouncing 
back” and “bouncing forward”.  

 
4.5 Many things can affect the resilience of communities, but it is recognised that a 

community’s ability to recover and adapt is linked to levels of poverty and 
deprivation.  So, it follows that reducing inequalities and poverty will help strengthen 
the ability of communities to demonstrate resilience. 

 
4.6 When we talk about communities we are very often talking about ‘communities of 

place’ i.e. communities defined by a local geographical area.  Even within that 
definition a person’s sense of community is quite a fluid thing, they can feel part of a 
number of geographical communities at the same time, for example belonging to 
their neighbourhood or their town depending on the context. 

 
4.7 It is important to remember though that there are other communities such as 

families and wider networks, as well as ‘communities of interest’ – people who 
define themselves as part of a group with an interest or a characteristic in common. 

 
4.8 Various research projects have tried to describe the characteristics of resilient 

communities and they include things such as: 

• A sense of belonging and orientation to a common purpose  
• Good social and organisational networks   
• Access to knowledge and resources, community hope, knowledge promotion 

skills   
• Active participation, shared decision making and collective action   
• Good local facilities, amenities and service provision 
• Good quality local environment, housing, infrastructure. 

 
4.9 From a growing body of work nationally and locally, we have evidence about what 

resilient communities look like and what kinds of approaches might work in building 
strong resilient communities.  Working out the most effective methods for building 
community resilience is not an easy task, especially since what might build 
resilience in one community may not be effective in another. 
 
Local context 

4.10 When the Council Strategy was written in 2019 the challenges identified included 
the inequalities present in our communities in particular with disparities in health 
outcomes, education and skills levels, and income levels across Allerdale which 
affect the capabilities of our communities to deal with longer term issues such as 
the changing nature of work and society.    

 
4.11 In developing the Resilient Communities Strategy we have considered whether the 

pandemic has altered the challenges facing our communities.  Undoubtedly there 
are some new immediate and shorter term challenges.  However, broadly the 
COVID-19 pandemic has magnified, but not necessarily changed the existing 
challenges our communities faced and has underlined the importance of 
strengthening our communities’ ability to adapt to change.  

 
4.12 The pandemic has highlighted inequalities in health even further – with a clear 

linkage between more deprived communities with poorer health outcomes and a 

Page 35



 

 

more serious impact of COVID-19.  As well as age, obesity has been shown to be a 
key factor in terms of how badly individuals are affected by the virus, and people 
who live in the most deprived areas are more likely to be obese.  The economic 
shock that the pandemic has brought has impacted and will continue to impact on 
people’s work, underlining inequalities around security of employment, types of jobs 
and income levels.  

 
4.13 Locally we are already seeing the impacts of COVID-19 on our communities.  We 

have seen an increase in numbers of unemployed since the start of COVID-19 and 
rises in Universal Credit claimants and claims to the Council’s Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme.  All indications are that we will see another rise in 
unemployment figures and benefit claims as further redundancies materialise in 
autumn 2020.  Current predictions are that we will also see a rise in the numbers in 
poverty as a result of the economic downturn, job losses and lack of employment 
opportunities. 

 
4.14 We have seen increasing rates of recorded anti-social behaviour including 

increases in noise complaints to the council and a significant increase in fly tipping 
in some of our neighbourhoods.   

 
4.15 At the same time, we have seen how numerous communities have come together 

to support each other with shopping, prescription deliveries and support using social 
media as a way to connect.  New groups have grown up in response in addition to 
the existing emergency response groups borne out of previous flooding events and 
all have done amazing work in their communities.   

 
4.16 The pandemic is of course still ongoing and we face a constantly changing picture 

making it hard to get a truly accurate picture of the current or potential future 
impacts on our communities.  There are also clearly implications for how we deliver 
as an organisation with changes in demand for services and additional tasks 
stemming from the pandemic - we need to monitor the picture and be adaptable.  

 
4.17 Some implications for our strategic approach can therefore be seen as: 

 The health implications of COVID-19 have magnified the importance of 
encouraging healthy active lifestyles  

 The importance of our services to those facing hardship (benefits, 
homelessness) has been highlighted 

 The importance of addressing inequalities has been emphasised   

 The importance of community safety work through multi agency approach to 
address local issues has been highlighted 

 The importance of improving engagement with communities, and improving 
collaboration with partners to make sure communities are supported has 
been underlined 

 The pandemic situation has shifted where we may need to focus efforts in the 
short term, but it has also presented opportunities to build on and to shift our 
thinking and behaviour and engage more fully with communities 

 The need to be adaptable to a constantly changing situation has been 
highlighted. 

  
 

Page 36



 

 

 Areas of focus 
4.18 In the light of the ongoing pandemic situation there is a need to focus in the short 

term on supporting communities to respond to and recover from the pandemic and 
its immediate consequences.  The Resilient Communities Strategy must also set 
out a strategic approach focusing on areas identified as some of the building blocks 
for more resilient communities – in that way we can help our communities become 
more adaptable and resilient in the longer term.   

 
4.19 As a council we need to recognise the complexities of building resilience, 

understand that we are just part of the picture and that we will need to work 
collaboratively with communities and with other organisations.  We can help to 
create the conditions that enable resilience by acting in some key areas that should 
help to strengthen our communities.   

 
4.20 In line with the Council Strategy the areas of focus for the Resilient Communities 

Strategy identified to date are: 

 Engaging, involving, collaborating and empowering 

 Promoting healthy, active lifestyles 

 Addressing community safety issues  

 Addressing inequalities and hardship  
 
4.21 Engaging, involving, collaborating and empowering 
 This area reflects research that shows involving and empowering communities 

more can help to build community resilience and recognises that as an organisation 
we could become more outward looking and do more to engage with our 
communities.  Approaches could include finding different ways to have 
conversations with residents about their communities and the services we deliver, 
as well as developing more informal ongoing dialogue with communities and partner 
organisations such as town and parish councils.  This area would also include 
making sure there is ongoing support for community groups through the Allerdale 
Community Resilience Group.    

 
4.22 Promoting healthy, active lifestyles 
 This reflects our local context and the poorer health outcomes we see in many of 

our communities which in turn affects their resilience. Active lifestyles are 
recognised as essential to good health, both physical and mental. Participation in 
sport, leisure, cultural and recreational activities has also been shown to help 
strengthen community resilience by raising confidence, encouraging community 
unity, encouraging volunteering and skills development.   Approaches here could 
include helping to make sure there are good quality places and spaces (both formal 
and informal) for people to participate in recreational activity, encouraging 
participation in formal and informal activity, and working through key partnerships 
such as the Allerdale Health and Wellbeing Forum on wider health and wellbeing 
issues.  

 
4.23 Addressing community safety issues 

This reflects the fact that how safe, accessible and welcoming our neighbourhoods, 
community places and community spaces feel can influence habits and behaviours. 
The COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the importance of outdoor space to meet 

Page 37



 

 

and exercise and whilst we know that overall Allerdale is a safe place to live and 
environmental quality is generally very good, we also know there are some 
communities where people do not feel that is the case.  Approaches here would 
include continuing to work through the Allerdale Local Focus Hub to take a multi-
agency approach to tackling community safety issues as well as encouraging 
people to get involved in taking care of their local environment through activities 
such as community clean-up activities. 

 
4.24 Addressing inequalities and hardship 

We know from research that a community’s ability to recover from events like the 
current pandemic and adapt to longer term change is undermined by poverty and 
deprivation. Locally, we see clear inequalities between communities within the 
district with some small areas experiencing considerable issues of poverty and 
inequality. The suggested approach here is two-fold: supporting those already 
experiencing poverty and inequality by alleviating immediate short term issues; and 
focusing on the longer term issues that improve resilience and prospects. In the 
shorter term that would include supporting people through our homelessness 
services, and delivering existing benefits and COVID-related schemes as effectively 
as possible. For the longer term the approach could include working with partners to 
take joint action on wider social and economic factors and identify longer term 
solutions to inequalities.  

 
4.25 Members are asked to note the suggested areas of focus and possible approaches 

outlined above and consider a) if there are any other areas that we should be 
focusing on to address the issues facing our communities and b) if there are any 
specific suggestions for actions that the council could take on its own or with 
partners to address the issues identified.  

 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 The Resilient Communities Strategy is due to be considered for approval by 

Executive in January 2021.  It will be underpinned by a series of plans that will set 
out more detailed action.   

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

The development of a Resilient Communities Strategy directly supports the Council 
Strategy theme of Resilient Communities and is identified as an action in the Interim 
Delivery Plan 2020/21.  

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 There are no legal or governance implications associated with this report. 

Page 38



 

 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

The Resilient 
Communities 
Strategy does not 
focus on the right 
things 

Council effort is 
misdirected and there 
is a missed opportunity 
to support communities 

Ensure that the 
strategy reflects the 
evidence  

Low 

The Resilient 
Communities 
Strategy tries to 
cover too much and 
is not focussed 
enough 

Limited council 
resources are spread 
too thinly and the 
strategy is not 
delivered 

Ensure that the 
strategy focuses on 
some key elements 
that the council can 
act upon. 

Medium 

    

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

The Resilient Communities Strategy is intended to identify ways that the council can 
better engage with and involve communities, including in service design and 
delivery. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 An Equality Impact Analysis has not been undertaken at this stage, but is being built 
into the development of the strategy.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

There are no health and safety implications associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

The Resilient Communities Strategy is intended to set out the council’s approach to 
improving health, wellbeing and community safety issues.  

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

The Resilient Communities Strategy is likely to include action relating to improving 
local environmental cleanliness.  

6.10 Other significant implications 

None 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

  

 

Page 39



 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Council Strategy 2020-2030 https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-
council/council-strategy-2020-2030/ 
 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 40

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/about-council/council-strategy-2020-2030/
mailto:alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk


Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 16 October 2020 

 

Economic Development Strategy Update 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Mike Johnson 

Report from    Nik Hardy (Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance) 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 This paper provides an update on the development an economic recovery and 
growth plan for the Council.  

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That members: 

 Note the report and the progress being made in development of a new 
economic recovery and growth plan for the Council 

 Consider the baseline assessment and provide feedback on issues or 
opportunities they would like to see addressed in the economic growth 
plan 

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 The Executive committed to developing a new economic growth plan for the 

Borough at their meeting in November 2019 along with an Investment Plan for 
Workington to support the bid to the Stronger Towns Fund. The funding to support 
this work was to come from the Allerdale Social Impact Investment Fund in the 
financial years 2019/20 and 2020/21.  

3.2 The procurement process started in January 2020 with a view to the successful 
tenderer starting in April 2020. A consortium led by Mott McDonald was successful 
in bidding for the work and were appointed in March 2020.  

3.3 The commission contained three core elements: 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



1. Update the baseline economic analysis of the local economy in 
Allerdale 

2. Develop a new economic growth plan 
3. Develop a Workington Town Investment Plan.  

3.4 All three stages of the work were due for completed by October 2020 but there have 
been some delays due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

4.0  Current Position – Baseline Economic Assessment 

 
4.1 The first completed element of the commission is the local economic baseline 

assessment and the final version is attached as appendix A to this report. The 
assessment sets out the overall evidence base that underpins the development 
work of the new growth plan and the Town Investment Plan for Workington. 

4.2 The assessment provides an economic overview and incorporates metrics on 
labour markets, travel to work patterns and digital connectivity amongst others. It 
also provides the Council with an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
local economy.  

4.3 The assessment reinforces existing knowledge around underpinning economic 
sectors in Allerdale such as manufacturing and tourism. The study also identifies 
the continued reliance on a small number of large employers across the borough.  

4.4  The economic outlook for Allerdale is relatively weak without intervention and 
reiterates the need to diversify the economy towards growth sectors aligned to 
sectoral strengths.  

4.5  The ongoing challenge of workforce supply looks set to continue for some time 
unless the area can attract more people of working age. This is simply an issue of 
population age and size rather than a skills issue.  

4.6 A number of challenges have been identified within the report. These are: 

 Infrastructure – issues with connectivity, transport pinch points and digital 
connectivity 

 Ideas – limited Higher Education base and R&D across the county and a 
weak innovation eco-system 

 Business environment – limited employment base, over dependency on 
key employers, low business start up rates and lack of local supply chain 
integration 

 Places – stubborn pockets of deprivation, future role of town centres 

 People – attract and retain those of working age, relatively low skills 
base, pockets of worklessness 

4.7 The report also identified a number of key assets and opportunities. They are: 

 Infrastructure – the Port of Workington, Workington well connected 
and a strong key service and commercial hub 

Page 42



 Ideas – world class nuclear sector assets, manufacturing 
capabilities, excellent environmental sustainability and land 
management assets 

 Business environment – Sellafield supply chain opportunities, 
remote working as a lasting impact from COVID-19 

 Places – quality of place and lifestyle offer, competitive cost base 

 People – concentration of education provision at Lillyhall, strong 
functioning vocational education system 

5.0  Workington Town Investment Plan 

 
5.1 A key element of the commission is the development of the Workington Town 

Investment Plan to support the Stronger Towns Fund proposal and it will be 
submitted to the Executive for approval on 14th October.  

5.2  The Town Investment Plan provides a comprehensive set of priority projects that 
are complementary to each other and fully aligned to the vision and strategic goals 
agreed by the Workington Town Deal Board as part of the commission. 

5.3 In developing the priority projects for the Town Deal programme the Government 
created a #MyTown webpage that enabled local people to submit ideas for how to 
improve skills and transport, create new jobs and regenerate local communities. 
Working with partners we actively directed local residents to this site including 
through the use of social media channels and also asked our partners involved in 
the Town Deal Board to promote this through their networks.  

5.4 This resulted in 82 individual responses, which compares favourably with the level 
of response received in relation to many of the 101 towns nationally who have been 
invited to put forward proposals as part of the Town Deal. Many of the respondents 
put forward a number of proposals.  

5.5 Partners were also invited to put forward project proposals. Alongside this, and in 
conjunction with the work being undertaken for the Economic Growth Strategy 37 in 
depth interviews with business, political and civic society stakeholders. As a result 
of this engagement some 120 potential interventions were identified. The Town 
Deal Board then undertook a sifting and prioritisation exercise having regard to the 
vision for Workington agreed by the Board and the priorities and intervention 
framework for the Town Deal set out by Government. This eventually identified 6 
priority projects for inclusion within the plan. 

5.6 A further public consultation has been undertaken seeking views on the identified 
projects via a questionnaire on the Council’s website. Again this has been promoted 
via press and social media channels, posters and through partner networks and 
social media channels. This has resulted in a good response with more than 450 
responses received at the time of writing this report demonstrating a good level of 
support for the projects.  

5.7 It is anticipated that further consultation will be undertaken as further development 
of the business case and design for projects is undertaken. This engagement is 
likely to take place on a project by project basis and have regard to the nature of the 
individual projects. 

Page 43



 

5.8 The Town Investment Plan has been developed with the aim of a submission to 
Government by 31 October 2020 as part of cohort 2 of the Towns Fund programme. 

6.0 Economic Recovery and Growth Plan  

6.1 The final element of the commission is the development of a new economy growth 
plan for the Council. This work will build on the evidence base developed in the 
economic assessment.  

6.2 A high-level plan will be developed to support the Council’s ambition for economic 
growth. This plan will also act as the Council’s economic recovery plan, as we look 
to support the local community through the economic impacts of the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

 
6.3 The commission also includes the development of a delivery plan that will include 

an assessment of some of the area’s key sites with the potential for economic 
growth and proposals for how the Council can build on activity over recent years to 
support the business community.  

 
6.4 Work is currently underway on the development of the strategy with a draft likely to 

be produced towards the end of the year and approval being sought from the 
Executive early in 2021.  

 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

A Allerdale Recovery and Growth Plan Baseline Assessment 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Nik Hardy 
Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance  
Nik.hardy@allerdale.gov.uk  
01900 702778  

Page 44



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Response to the pandemic  
Task and Finish Group 

Report no. 1 

 

 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 

Page 175

Agenda Item 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2019-2020 

Background 

This report is the result of a one-off session with the Council’s officers directly 

involved in dealing with addressing the response to the pandemic. 

This is a summary of the situation at the time of the meeting in early September and 

as there are regular changes in addressing the effects of the pandemic, this may not 

reflect the current position. 

Councillor Michael Heaslip    

Co Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Chair of this Group. 

 

 

National and legal context 

 

The legal context for managing outbreaks of communicable disease which present a 

risk to the health of the public requiring urgent investigation and management sits 

with 

 

1. Public Health England (Health and Social Care Act 2012) 

2. Directors of Public Health (Health and Social Care Act 2012) 

3. Chief Environmental Health Officers (Public Health (Control of Infectious 

Disease) Act 1984) 

4. NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups 

5. Other responders specific responsibilities to respond to major incidents (Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004) 

6. The Coronavirus Act 2020 

 

Local authorities (specifically public health and environmental health) together with 

Public Health England have primary responsibility for the delivery and management 

of public health actions to be taken in relation to outbreaks of communicable disease 

through local health protection partnerships. 

 

 

Current response in Cumbria 

The current response is set up as below (highlighted aspects only, more groups and 

sub-groups exist for different areas of need): 

 

 Directors of Cumbria Health have primary responsibility for the health of their 

communities and this applies to Cumbria 
 

Page 176



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2019-2020 

 The Health Protection Board meets weekly and an incident management hub 

(including Allerdale staff) meets daily including weekends. 

 Daily incident management meetings include all the district councils, Public 

Health England, NHS, the public health staff team at Cumbria County Council 

and the Director of Public Health. 
 

 Outbreak control teams meet when required: Education Outbreak Control 

meeting to discuss cases linked to schools. This has been daily due to new 

cases in schools each day; Care Home Outbreak control also meets daily – 

Allerdale staff are not part of this but receive minutes and contact trace staff 

for their out of work contacts. 

 
All incidents and outbreaks are discussed at the daily meetings which works 

extremely well and those involved feel they get the right information, guidance and 

advice. All districts and agencies feel these meetings are having a positive effect and 

members are learning a lot and feel valued with great confidence in this approach. 

 

A daily operating group meets daily through the working week to set actions and 

have longer practical discussions about cases. 

 

The Director of Public Health is required to produce an outbreak control plan. These 

documents can be accessed here: 

 

Outbreak Control Plan Part 1 – Strategy, Management and Oversight 
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124112.pdf 

 
Outbreak Control Plan Part 2 – Operational Response 
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124238.pdf 
 

 

 

Allerdale Borough Council current response 
 

The meetings in response to track and trace began in May. The requirement to be 

involved in additional meetings has been over and above officers’ regular 

responsibilities, which were already being impacted with regulation changes 

regarding food and occupational help.    

 

Allerdale staff are involved in following up individuals identified through track and 

trace with direct contact (distanced as appropriate) and providing advice to food 

businesses, other businesses, following up incidences for example of homelessness 

issues as well as dealing with complaints or reports from the public and carrying out 

enforcement where required. 
 

 

 

 

Page 177

https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124112.pdf
https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/535/17941/17942/44012124238.pdf


Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2019-2020 

Conclusion 

 

The Group appreciated the overview of the local response and was both satisfied 

with work being done and impressed with commitment and dedication of the staff 

involved working beyond their regular roles and hours. 

 

The Group noted that the success of our work in controlling the outbreak is entirely 

dependent on the efficacy of the national testing system in identifying infected 

persons and speedily communicating their details to our tracing teams. There are 

grave concerns, across the country, as to whether the testing system is working 

effectively: this is something the Task Group should continue to keep in view. 

 

 

Page 178



Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 November 2020 to 31 October 2021 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Land and Buildings 
in Workington 
 
Key Decision 
 
The proposed 
acquisition of land and 
buildings in Workington 
to support regeneration 
proposals. 

Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
September 2020 

Part exempt 
 
Commercial confidence 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

 
 
 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Amendments to 
Partnership 
Agreement 
 
Key Decision 

Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
September 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
 

  
 
 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership  - Updated 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 

Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
September 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
 

  

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 10



Quarter 1 Finance 
Report April to June 
2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to June 2020 along 
with the forecast position 
to 31 March 2021 
 

Executive 
 
14 October 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Workington Town 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider and 
approve the Workington 
Town Investment Plan 
for submission 
 

Executive 
 
14 October 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Public Space 
Protection Order - Dog 
Fouling 
 
Key Decision 
 
 
 

Executive 
 
14 October 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Anthony 
Markley 

Sharon Sewell, Head of 
Governance and 
Regulatory Services and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 180



Workington Town 
Centre Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
The document will 
provide further planning 
guidance for 
development proposals 
and wider improvements 
to Workington town 
centre. This will include 
design, public realm, 
open space and green 
infrastructure guidance 
as well as for re-
purposing empty 
buildings and improving 
connectivity for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 

Executive 
 
14 October 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

Reedlands Business 
Park 
 
Key Decision 
 
Update and budget 
approval decision in 
relation to the 
Reedlands Business 
Park Project 
 

Executive 
 
14 October 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 181



Strategic Acquisition 
of Buildings in 
Maryport 
 
Key Decision 
 
The proposed 
acquisition of buildings 
in Maryport to support 
regeneration proposals. 

Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
October 2020 

Part exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson  
 
 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Consideration of 
Future Sites 
 
Key Decision 

Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
October 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
 

  
 
 

Statement of Accounts 
2019/2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present members 
with the Statement of 
Accounts for 
consideration and 
approval 

Audit Committee 
 
24 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

ERP Project Award of 
Contract 
 
Key Decision 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Part exempt 
 
 

 Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 182



Allerdale Economic 
Strategy and 
Workington 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
refreshed Economic 
Strategy for the Borough 
and the Investment Plan 
as part of Workington 
Stronger Towns. 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Nik Hardy, Head of 
Strategy, Policy and 
Performance, Kevin 
Kerrigan, Programme 
Director for Workington 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk, 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 2 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 2 
2020/21. 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

2021/22 Budget 
Strategy & Updated 
Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2020/21 
to 2023/24 
 
Key Decision 
 

Executive 
 
25 November 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 183



To present the updated 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) and outline 
the risks and 
assumptions that will 
underpin preparation of 
the budget for 2021/22 

Quarter 2 Finance 
report and Revised 
budget 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to September 2020 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2021 and to seek 
approval for the revised 
revenue and capital 
budgets for 2020-21 

Executive  
 
25 November 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder 
updates (non-key) 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
 
 
 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

P
age 184



Treasury Management 
Operations – Mid-year 
review 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s treasury 
management activities 
during the six month 
period ending 30th 
September 2019 

Audit Committee  
 
24 November 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Treasury Management 
Operation Annual 
Report 2019/20 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the performance of the 
Council’s treasury 
management activities 
for the year 

Audit Committee  
 
29 September 2020  
 
Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Community 
Governance Review: 
Flimby & Maryport 
 
Key Decision 
 
To receive a report from 
the CGR Working Group 
on the effect of Covid-19 

Council 
 
9 December 2020 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Andrew Seekings 
Chief Executive 
 
 

P
age 185



on the review and to 
seek Council's support 
for the course of action 
taken. 

Scrap Metal Dealers 
Act 2013 
 
Key Decision 
 
Review of fees and 
charges and delegations 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Contract for the 
supplier(s) to provide 
the testing of hackney 
carriage and private 
hire vehicles 
 
Key Decision 
 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Jill Morgan, Legal 
Executive 
 
jill.morgan@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Buildings in 
Maryport 
 
Key Decision 
 
The proposed 
acquisition of buildings 
in Maryport to support 
regeneration proposals. 
 
 

Executive 
 
13 January 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Graeme Wilson, 
Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
graeme.wilson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 186



Proposed review of 
Licensing Fees and 
Charges 
 
Key Decision 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Calculation of Council 
Tax Base 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To seek approval of the 
calculation of the council 
tax base for the whole 
district and for each 
parish and town council, 
for 2021-22 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Members Allowances 
2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
Members Allowances 
Scheme for 2020/21. 

Council 
 
27 January 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Lee Jardine, Democratic 
and Support Services 
Officer 
 
lee.jardine@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Quarter 3 Finance 
Report Oct to Dec  
2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 187



the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to December 2019 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2020 

Quarter 3 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 3 
2020/21. 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Council Tax 
Resolution Report 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
necessary resolutions 
for Council Tax setting in 
accordance with 
Sections 31 – 36 of the 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 
 

Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 188



Revenue & Capital 
Budget Proposals 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To seek approval for the 
revenue and capital 
budgets and to present 
the formal advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer on 
the robustness of 
estimates included in the 
budget and the 
adequacy of reserves 
which support the 
Council’s budgetary 
plans 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Capital Investment 
Strategy 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Capital 
Investment Strategy 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Head of Financial 
Services 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Treasury Management 
Strategy, Annual 
Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 2021/22 
 

Audit Committee  
 
25 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 
 
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

P
age 189



Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 

Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 4 
2020/21. 

Executive 
 
12 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member and 
Deputy Leader: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ. Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 190

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 08/10/2020 

 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council 
Strategy 
Theme 

 

Friday 27 
November 

Performance 
management 
 

The Committee will consider reports regarding the financial and 
overall performance for quarter 2 to identify any aspects requiring 
detailed consideration. 

Report and 
presentation to 
Committee 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 

 

Friday 15 
January 2021 

Progress update 
on climate 
change 

The Committee will consider what progress has been made on the 
climate change agenda over the previous twelve months. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

A cleaner, 
greener Allerdale 
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 

     
 

Friday 26 
February 

Development of a 
new Housing 
Strategy 

The current Housing Strategy runs up to 2021.  Work will begin 
later in 2020/21 to start developing a new strategy. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

Thriving towns 
and villages  
Invest to grow  
Resilient 
communities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 

Performance 
management 
 

The Committee will consider reports regarding the financial and 
overall performance for quarter 3 to identify any aspects requiring 
detailed consideration. 

Reports and 
presentation to 
Committee 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – All Portfolio Holders 

 

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 11



  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 08/10/2020 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council 
Strategy 
Theme 

Friday 26 
March 

Update and 
review of town 
based 
programmes in 
Workington and 
Maryport 

These major programmes are central to the Interim Delivery Plan. 
The meeting may either have single focus on one programme or a 
short update on each programme. 

Report and / or 
presentation to 
Committee 

Thriving towns 
and villages 
Invest to grow 
Resilient 
communities 
A cleaner, 
greener Allerdale 

Lead Officer – Programme Director Workington;  Programme Director Maryport 
Regeneration 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Mike Johnson 

     
 

Friday 23 
April  
 

Reports from 
representatives 
to other scrutiny 
bodies 

There are a number of other scrutiny bodies which the Council is 
represented on. Other scrutiny bodies to provide update on their 
work: 
LEP Scrutiny Board 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint Committee 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Sellafield sites stakeholder group 

Presentation / 
Committee meeting 
agenda item 

Resilient 
communities  
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor  

Annual work 
programme 2021-
2022 

Consideration of items for the work programme during the next 
municipal year. 

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 

    

 

 

 

P
age 192



  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 08/10/2020 

Regular items for each Committee agenda 

 

Items  
 

Council Plan 
Priority  

 

Purpose  
 

Lead Officer  
 

Lead 
Portfolio 
Holder   

 

Lead Scrutiny 
Member  
 

Forward Plan All Council Plan 
priorities 

To identify any forthcoming items 
which the Committee may consider  

Head of Governance and 
Regulatory Services 

Leader of the 
Council  

Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Work Programme 
Updates  

All Council Plan 
priorities 

To provide the Committee with the 
opportunity to review  its’ own 
work plan for the rest of the year  

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 

Not applicable Co-Chairs of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Task and Finish 
Group Updates  

All Council Plan 
priorities 

To receive progress reports from 
any Task and Finish Group 

Policy Officer (Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 

Not applicable Chair of individual 
Task and Finish 
Groups 

 

P
age 193



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 194


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Quarter 1 Performance Report 2020/21
	Appendix A for Q1 Performance Report 2020/21

	7 Developing a Resilient Communities strategy
	8 Developing an Economic Growth strategy
	200818 Allerdale Baseline Report_Final

	9 Task and Finish Group Updates
	10 Forward Plan
	11 Work Programme 2020/21

